
 

 

 
 
 
 

November 22, 2011 
 
 
Re: 11RFP78846K-MH 
Construction Management At Risk Services for Expansion and Major 
Renovation for The Auburn Avenue Research Library  
 
 
Dear Bidders: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 1, hereby made a part of the above referenced  
RFP.   
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the RFP referenced above 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Mark Hawks 
 
Mark Hawks 
Assistant Purchasing Agent  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 
11RFP78846K-MH  
  
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Department of Purchasing & Contract 
Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the RFP due date and time  December 1, 2011 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1, __________ day of ____________, 
20__. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
11RFP78846K-MH  
 
CLARIFICATIONS 

1. The attached LEED Implementation Plan (Attachment 1) shall replace the LEED 

Implementation Plan that was issued with the RFP. 

2. The attached Cost Proposal Form, Form B – Construction Services Fee %, shall replace Cost 

Proposal Form, Form B that was issued with the RFP. 

3. The attached Required Proposal Submittal Check List shall replace the check list that was 

issued with the RFP. 

 
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS  
Q1: Is a Bid Bond required even though this is not a bid project? 
A1: A Bid Bond is required, see Section 2, 2.13, Bid Bond or Guaranty and Section 8 (Bid 
Bond). 
 
Q2: Should the Bid Bond be filled out for the amount of the GC's/Fee only? 
A2: The Bid Bond shall not be less than 5% of the total amount of the budget for the branch 

library in which the Proposer is submitting on.  See Section 8, page 8-1 and Section 2, 
2.13, Bid Bond or Guaranty. 

 
Q3: Regarding Section 9 – Location of Firm, our firm complies with #2 (51%+ of company 

ownership resides in Fulton Co.) of the three possible criteria for determining Local Preference.  
However, Form H includes space only to fill out compliance with criteria #1 (business within the 
geographic boundaries of Fulton Co.), with which we do not comply.  Will Form H count 
negatively against our firm? 

A3: Form H must be filled out correctly.  Proposer has the opportunity in Section 9 of the 
Technical Proposal to provide supporting documentation in order to receive the full 
points for Location of Firm.  See Section 3, 3.4, Section 9 - Location of Firm. 

 
Q4: When scoring responses to Section 14 – Cost, would $0.00 be considered the lowest total Pre-

Construction Services Cost and therefore receive the full 5 points, or will Fulton County award 
the 5 points to the lowest responsible Pre-Construction cost? 

A4: See Section 3, 3.4, Section 14 - Cost.  The respondent with the lowest total Pre-
Construction Services Cost will receive the full 5 points. 

 
Q5: Regarding Form A, the Non-Collusion Affidavit of Bidder/Offerer:  A.) Should the amount of the 

offer be our total dollar amount for GCs/fee?  B.) If we do not have an officer of the company 
with the title of "Secretary" or "Assistant Secretary", do we state N/A or rather choose another 
officer/representative of our company to sign at this location? 

A5: A.) Said offer shall be construction budget as listed in Section 8, page 8-1.  B.)  If 
Company does not have a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; the Proposer can have 
authorized Corporate Officers sign. 
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Q6: With the requirement of "not more than 30 pages (sheets of paper - 8.5"x11") printed on two 

sides", please clarify which scenario this dictates:  A.) We are allowed not more than 30 pages 
total of printed content.  B.) We are allowed not more than 60 pages of content printed on the 
front and back sides of 30 physical sheets of 8.5" x 11" paper. 

A6: B. See Section 3, 3.4. 
 
Q7: Form G: Does this form have to be filled out if we are not using subcontractors? If yes, what 

goes in the „Insert Subcontractor Name‟ section? Do we just have an authorized officer sign 
that line and ignore the „Insert Subcontractor Name‟ portion? 

A7: Form G must be filled out.  If Proposer does not plan on having any subcontractors 
during pre-construction, insert "N/A" into Subcontractor Name section. 

 
Q8: Form F: The second line of the form says „By: Authorized Officer of Agent‟ but there is a line 

under that reads „Insert Subcontractor Name‟. What goes in this section if we are not using 
subcontractors? Do we just have an authorized officer sign that line and ignore the „Insert 
Subcontractor Name‟ portion?  

A8: The Authorized Officer of Agent shall sign this line and shall also include Subcontract 
Name if known. 

 
Q9: 2.4. Page 2-8.  Preconstruction Services timeline is noted as 365 days.  This would lead us to 

believe all of 2012 will be used for Preconstruction.  In reading the RFP, it appears the 
expectation will be approximately 3 pricing rounds (Schematic, 25% CD, 50% CD/GMP).  
Please confirm timeline and intended number of pricing efforts for our use in providing 
accurate costs of our Preconstruction Services. 

A9: The term of the contract for pre-construction phase services will be 365 calendar days, 
reference Section 2, item 2.4.  Please also reference General Conditions, Section 00700, 
00700-92 Scope of Work, A, a, (a). 

 
Q10: Based on information gathered from the presentations made, there was an earlier reference of 

the timeline for these projects.  „Achieve completion of Phase I projects in 2013 and early 
2014.  Can you please confirm the projected Construction timeline? 

A10: The projected construction completion is by the end of December 2013. 
 
Q11: 2.13. Page 2-11.  A request for insurance coverage during Preconstruction Phase is being 

requested.  What insurance requirements are needed to be covered during the pricing 
phases? 

A11: CM is to carry and maintain insurance coverages in compliance with coverages shown 
in Draft OCIP Wrap-Up Manual (Volume 3) on the pages titled "Insurance Provided By 
The Construction Manager And All Subcontractors" (excluding Aviation and Watercraft 
Liability). 
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Q12: 2.30.  Page 2-20.  Note 10 references tax exemption.  Are we to understand that this project 

will have tax exempt status? 
A12: No 
 
Q13: 3.3. Page 3-2.  Preconstruction scope references the inclusions, and later in GC Section 

00700.92A, there is a reference to us needing to provide BIM.  We assume per the Design 
RFP that this will be part of their scope, and we will ASSIST in their model in clash 
detection/etc.  Please confirm. 

A13: The Design Team will utilize 3D modeling software programs.  Please also reference 
Section 1, County Objectives (4th bullet point) for more information regarding CM's 
requirements for BIM. 

 
Q14: General Conditions, 00700-2:  Please consider removing the requirement for power(s) of 

attorney to be attached to the certificate of insurance.  We have not seen this requirement 
before and typically receive powers of attorney from surety companies only – not the insurance 
carriers. 

A14: See Section 00700-2.  Power of Attorney pertains to Surety companies and would not 
apply to Certificates of Insurance. 

 
Q15: RFP, Section 7:  Are all contractors on the project to be included as insured‟s on the Pollution 

Liability policy purchased by the Owner? 
A15: See Section 7, 7.3, Additional Information, D.    All eligible Contractors enrolled in the 

OCIP Wrap-Up will be covered by the Pollution Liability policy. 
 
Q16: The specs say this Project will be insured via an Owner Controlled Insurance Program. I 

assume that means the County has a rolling wrap-up program as a $13 million project would 
be too small for a standalone OCIP.  

A16: All projects in Phase 1 of the Atlanta-Fulton Library System Capital Improvement 
Program, Phase 1 will be covered by a Rolling Wrap Up (GL only). 

 
Q17: The Owner is also furnishing Builder‟s Risk coverage and Pollution coverage. Contractor is 

responsible for the first $5,000 of each loss. Does the Owner‟s policy cover false work, 
forming, framing, etc? 

A17: Yes, policy provides coverage for false work, forming and framing work as long as work 
is performed on OCIP site. 

 
Q18: A.) From the OCIP manual, please describe/define the $5,000 sublimit of insurance titled 

“Contractor Responsibility for Property Damage”.  B.) Does the sublimit apply to all enrolled 
parties or only to the responsible contractor?  C.) OR please provide specimen GL and Excess 
policies for review. 

A18: A.) If the contractor causes a loss, they will be responsible for payment of $5,000 
deductible.  B.) Applies to all enrolled parties.  C.) Policies not yet available for review. 
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Q19: Can the insurance limit requirements for subcontractors be satisfied with a combination of 

primary limits and Umbrella/Excess limits? 
A19: Yes, a combination of GL and Umbrella limits are permitted. 
 
Q20: Can you please confirm requirement for the following will be needed for all subcontractors 

bidding on the project:  Auto Liability must include Broadened Pollution Endorsements CA9948 
and MCS 90? 

A20: If the lowered tiered subcontractors cannot provide, the GC (CM) will be held 
responsible should any claims result. 

 
Q21: Can you please confirm requirement for the following will be needed for all subcontractors 

bidding on the project:  WC/Employers Liability to include U.S. Longshoremen and Harbor 
Workers Act.  Why? 

A21: WC/Employers Liability to include U.S. Longshoremen and Harbor Workers Act will not 
be  necessary to carry. 
 
Q22: Can you please confirm requirement for the following will be needed for all subcontractors 

bidding on the project:  Completed Ops coverage required for up to 5 years after project 
completion? 

A22: Yes, Completed Operations coverage required by everyone for up to 5 years after 
project completion.  See Volume 3, Draft OCIP Wrap Up Manual. 

 
Q23: “During our review of the RFP package, we noticed some discrepancies regarding the required 

timing for delivery of the Performance and Payment Bonds.  The language varied from “10 
days of receipt of the contract documents” to “within 10 days of the GMP Amendment (as 
outlined on page 2 of the Cost Proposal Form – Form B).  Given that the Performance and 
Payment Bond amounts are required to match the GMP Amendment amount, we believe the 
Form B language to be the most applicable, but this language is in direct contrast with the 
language contained in the Bid Bond.  Please confirm that the Performance and Payment 
bonds will be required per the terms contained in the Cost Proposal Form-Form B or advise 
otherwise.”  

A23: Payment and Performance Bonds are due prior to the execution of the GMP Amendment 
as is stated in Section 2, 2.13 and Section 9.  Please see also revised Cost Proposal 
Form-Form B (Attachment 2) included in this Addendum. 
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COST PROPOSAL FORM 
FORM B –CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FEE % 

 
Submitted To:  Fulton County Government 
 
Submitted By:  ______________________ 
 
For:   RFP #11RFP78846K-MH, CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK SERVICES FOR EXPANSION 

AND MAJOR RENOVATION FOR AUBURN AVENUE RESEARCH LIBRARY 

 
 

Submitted on ____________________, 2011 
 
In response to the Request for Proposal, the undersigned, hereby proposes to furnish all construction 
(including additional work / change orders), labor, technical and professional services, materials, supplies, 
equipment, and General Conditions, insurance (pending mutual acceptance of GMP Amendment by Fulton 
County and Proposer/CM) for the satisfactory completion of the Construction Phase Services for a fee % of  
XXX Percent (XX%), which amount is hereinafter called the Construction Management Fee %, which shall 

cover the CM’s Overhead and Profit. 
 
The undersigned agrees that this Cost Proposal constitutes a firm offer to the Fulton County Government 
(“County”), which cannot be withdrawn for sixty (60) calendar days from and after the due date or until a 
Contract for the Work is executed by the undersigned and the County, whichever is earlier.  If necessary, the 
period of time specified may be extended by written agreement between the County and the Proposer or 
Proposers concerned. 
 
The undersigned declares that the only person or persons interested in the Proposal as principal or 
principals is or are named herein and that no other person than herein mentioned has any interest in this 
Proposal or in the Contract to be entered into; that this Proposal is made without connection with any other 
person, company or parties making a Proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith without 
collusion or fraud. 
 
The undersigned further declares that it has examined and is fully familiar with all of the provisions of the 
Technical Documents and any addenda; that it has carefully checked all of the words and figures shown in 
its Cost Proposal; that it has carefully reviewed the accuracy of all statements in this Proposal and 
attachments; and that it has by careful examination of the Proposal Documents and any addenda ,satisfied 
itself as to the nature and locate of all work, the general and local conditions to be encountered in the 
performance of any work, the requirements of the undersigned hereby agrees that the County, its 
departments and agencies and their representatives shall not be responsible for any errors or omissions on 
the part of the undersigned in preparing this Proposal.  
 
If awarded a Contract, the undersigned agrees that, in the case of a failure on his part to execute the 
Contract Agreement within ten (10) days after receipt of Contract Agreement, the Bid Bond accompanying 
the proposal and the monies payable thereon shall be paid into the funds of the Owner as liquidated 
damages for such failure.  Payment and Performance Bonds must be submitted prior to execution of the 
GMP Amendment.   
 
Enclosed is a Bid Bond in the approved form, in the sum of ($                         ) 
 
               Dollars according to  
the conditions of “Instructions to Proposers” and Volume 1, Section 8 and provisions thereof.   
 
The Proposer proposes and agrees, if this Proposal is accepted, to contract with the Board of 
Commissioners of Fulton County, Atlanta, Georgia, in the form of contact specified, to furnish all necessary 
materials, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation and labor necessary, and to 
complete the construction of the work in full and complete accordance with the RFP, and reasonably 
intended requirements of the Specifications and Contract Documents to the full and entire satisfaction of the 
Board of Commissioners of Fulton County, Atlanta, Georgia, with a definite understanding that no money will 
be allowed for extra work except as set forth in the attached General Conditions and Contract Documents 
for the following prices. 
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The Proposer agrees hereby to commence Construction Phase Services work under this Contract, with 
adequate personnel and equipment, on a date to be specified in the agreed upon GMP Amendment and to 
fully complete all work under this Contract within a date to be specified in the agreed upon GMP 
Amendment.  

 
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda (list by the number and date appearing on 
each addendum) and thereby affirms that its Proposal considers and incorporates any modifications to the 
originally issued Solicitation Documents included therein. 
 
ADDENDUM #  DATED     
 
ADDENDUM #  DATED     
 
ADDENDUM #  DATED     
 
ADDENDUM #  DATED     
 
PROPOSER:            

 
 By:           
    [Name Typed or Printed] 
                 
    [Name Signed] 
 

 Title:            
 
 Business Address:          
         
                 
  
                 
 
 Business Phone:             
 
  

Bidder’s Contractor License No:         
          [State/County] 
 License Expiration Date:         
 
 
Note:  If the Proposer is a corporation, the Proposal shall be signed by an officer of the corporation; if a 
partnership, it shall be signed by a partner.  If signed by others, authority for signature shall be attached. 
 
The full name and addresses of persons or parties interested in the foregoing Proposal, as principals, are as 
follows:  
 

Name Address 
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CM at Risk Services for Expansion and Major Renovation for Auburn Avenue Research Library 

EXHIBIT B  

Required Proposal Submittal Check List for Request for Proposal (RFP) 

 
The following submittals shall be completed and submitted with each proposal (see table below 
“Required Proposal Submittal Check List”).  Please check to make sure that the required submittals are in the 
envelope before it is sealed.  Failure to submit all required submittals may deem your proposal non-
responsive. 
 

Proposers shall submit the following:  
 

 Technical Proposal, one (1) original and five (5) copies on CD media in PDF format.  
  

 Contract Compliance Exhibits, one (1) original with the Technical Proposal marked “Original” and 
one (1) copy in a separate sealed envelope. 

 

 Financial Information, one (1) original with the Technical Proposal marked “Original” and one (1) 
copy in a separate sealed envelope.   

 

 Cost Proposal, one (1) original and one (1) copy in a separate sealed envelope. 
 

All Proposals must be complete with all requested information. Tab Each Section 
 

Item # Required Proposal Submittal 

Check List 

Check (√) 

 

1 Technical Proposal.   

See Section 3, Items 3.1 through 3.4 

 

2 5 CD’s  

3 Financials    (Place in a Separate Sealed Envelope)  

4 Cost Proposal – Introduction & Forms A and B.   

See Section 3, 3.5.  Cost Proposal Forms located in Volume 2. 

 

5 Proposal Forms  
Form A  -  Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder/Offeror 
Form B  -  Certificate Regarding Debarment 
Form C2-  Georgia General Contractors License  
Form D  -  Certificate of Acceptance of Request for Proposal Requirements 
Form E  -  Disclosure Form & Questionnaire  
Form F  -  Georgia Security and Immigration Contractor Affidavit and 
Agreement 
Form G -  Georgia Security and Immigration Subcontractor Affidavit 
Form H  -  Local Preference Affidavit of Bidder/Offer 
 
See Section 5 

 

6 Contract Compliance Requirements  
      Exhibit A  -  Promise of Non-Discrimination (for Prime and each Sub) 
      Exhibit B  -  Employment Record (for Prime and each Sub) 
      Exhibit C  -  Schedule of Intended Subcontractor Utilization.  
      Exhibit D  -  Letter of Intent to Perform as Subcontractor.   
      Exhibit E  -  Declaration Regarding Subcontractor Practices 
      Exhibit F  -  Joint Venture Disclosure Affidavit 
      Equal Business Opportunity Plan (EBO Plan) 
      Form 2 (First Source Jobs Program) 
 

See Section 6 
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7 Insurance Cost Calculation Form 1 (Submitted in Technical Proposal) 
 

See Section 3, 3.4, 13 and Section 7 

 

8 Bid Bond 
 

See Section 8       (Put Bid Bond in a Separate Sealed Envelope) 

 

9 Escrow Documents (submitted within 10 days after Proposal due date) 
       
       See General Conditions, 00700-108 for submittal requirements 

 

 

END OF SECTION 

 




































































